

Senate Bill No. 504–Committee on Finance

CHAPTER.....

AN ACT relating to projects of capital improvement; authorizing certain expenditures by the State Public Works Board; levying a property tax to support the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund; making appropriations; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

EXPLANATION – Matter in ***bolded italics*** is new; matter between brackets ***[omitted material]*** is material to be omitted.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The State Board of Finance shall issue general obligation bonds of the State of Nevada in the face amount of not more than \$27,133,179 for the capital improvements summarized in this section. This amount is allocated to projects numbered and described in the Executive Budget for the 2011-2013 biennium or otherwise described as follows:

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
1. Capital improvements for the Department of Administration:		
Upgrade electrical power-		
Stewart Facility	11-M08	\$1,252,739
Upgrade electrical power		
supply-Blasdel Building.....	11-M09	\$723,277
Statewide Roofing Program	11-S01	\$3,096,918
Statewide ADA Program.....	11-S02	\$149,999
Statewide Fire and Life		
Safety Program.....	11-S03	\$3,203,396
Statewide Fire and Life		
Safety Program-Highway		
Fund	11-S03h	\$33,077
Statewide Advance Planning		
Program.....	11-S04	\$704,546
2. Capital improvements for the State Department of		
Conservation and Natural Resources:		
Roof, Mechanical Screen		
and HVAC Replacement-		
Valley of Fire State Park		
Visitor Center.....	11-M32	\$261,458



<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
3. Capital improvements for the Department of Corrections:		
Replace doors, locks and control panels-Southern Desert Correctional Center	11-M15	\$3,356,250
Evaporative media replacement-High Desert State Prison	11-M21	\$734,637
Replace boiler-Lovelock Correctional Center Central Plant.....	11-M30	\$1,512,714
Upgrade culinary walk-in freezer and refrigerators-Northern Nevada Correctional Center	11-M34	\$846,048
4. Capital improvements for the Department of Health and Human Services:		
HVAC System Renovation-Lakes Crossing.....	11-M25	\$427,129
HVAC Renovation-Northern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services Buildings 1, 2 and 5.....	11-M26	\$752,638
HVAC Renovation-Desert Regional Center Building 1391.....	11-M38	\$804,321
5. Capital improvements for the Office of the Military:		
Replace fire protection ponds with underground storage tanks-Stead Army Aviation Support Facility.....	11-M04	\$57,878
Replace vehicle exhaust systems-Facility Maintenance Shop and Combined Support Maintenance Shop Buildings-North Las Vegas Armory	11-M05	\$23,829



<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
Install emergency generator- Stead Army Aviation Support Facility.....	11-M06	\$77,055
HVAC Renovation-Nevada Army National Guard Stead Dining Facility	11-M29	\$15,826
Energy Efficiency Improvements at Field Maintenance Shop and Central Support Maintenance Shop facilities-Carson City and Las Vegas.....	11-E06	\$32,224
Electrical upgrades for simulator power at Stead Training Facility.....	11-E07	\$30,581
Advance Planning-Army National Guard Aviation Support Facility at Elko Airport.....	11-E08	\$99,022
Remodel Hangar C12 VIP waiting area at Stead Nevada Army National Guard.....	11-E11	\$25,995
Replace hangar door seals and concrete flatwork- Stead Army Aviation Support Facility.....	11-E12	\$18,862
6. Capital Improvements for the Nevada System of Higher Education: NSHE Deferred Maintenance (HECC/SHECC)	11-M39	\$7,622,912
7. Capital improvements for the Department of Wildlife: Reno Wildlife Headquarters- Install Electrical and Sprinkler System.....	11-M01	\$1,269,848

Sec. 2. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 1 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2015, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 18, 2015.



Sec. 3. 1. The State Board of Finance may issue the bonds authorized pursuant to section 1 of this act at the time deemed appropriate by the Board based on the schedule established for the completion of the projects described in that section.

2. The State Controller may advance temporarily from the State General Fund, upon the approval of the Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration, to the State Public Works Division of the Department, until the date on which bonds authorized by section 1 of this act are sold, amounts necessary to facilitate the start of the projects enumerated in section 1 of this act. The State Controller shall not advance more than the face amount of the bonds authorized to be issued. The advanced amounts must be repaid immediately to the State General Fund upon the sale of the bonds or not later than the last business day in August immediately following the end of the fiscal year during which the advance is made.

3. The Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration shall provide written notification to the State Controller and the Senate and Assembly Fiscal Analysts of the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau of the approval of an advance from the State General Fund to the State Public Works Division pursuant to subsection 2.

Sec. 4. There is hereby appropriated from the State Highway Fund to the State Public Works Division of the Department of Administration the sum of \$2,413,578 to support the Division in carrying out the program of capital improvements summarized in this section. This amount is allocated to projects numbered and described in the Executive Budget for the 2011-2013 biennium or otherwise described as follows:

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
1. Advance planning-DMV building in south Reno	11-E02	\$321,913
2. Advance planning-DMV building in Las Vegas	11-E04	\$332,571
3. Design, construction of flood water protection improvements at Carson City DMV building-Phase 1a	11-E05	\$363,348



<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
4. Carson City DMV Computer Room HVAC Unit Installation	11-M31	\$171,050
5. Carson City DMV roof replacement	11-S01h	\$1,035,651
6. Statewide Fire and Life Safety Program-Highway Fund	11-S03h	\$189,045

Sec. 5. Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by section 4 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2015, by the entity to which the appropriation is made or any entity to which money from the appropriation is granted or otherwise transferred in any manner, and any portion of the appropriated money remaining must not be spent for any purpose after September 18, 2015, by either the entity to which the money was appropriated or the entity to which the money was subsequently granted or transferred, and must be reverted to the State Highway Fund on or before September 18, 2015.

Sec. 6. The amounts appropriated pursuant to section 4 of this act from the State Highway Fund must be allocated by the State Controller as the money is required for the projects and must not be transferred to the projects from the State Highway Fund until required to make contract payments.

Sec. 7. 1. The State Public Works Division of the Department of Administration shall transfer the sum of \$11,595,811 from the amounts authorized pursuant to section 9 of chapter 440, Statutes of Nevada 2009, at page 2460, for the project numbered and described in the Executive Budget for the 2009-2011 biennium or otherwise described as Project 09-C02a, New 36-bed child and adolescent hospital-Southern Nevada Child and Adolescent Services, to projects as authorized in subsection 2.

2. The State Public Works Division shall use the \$11,595,811 transferred pursuant to subsection 1 to support the Division in carrying out the program of capital improvements summarized in this subsection.

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
Laxalt Building-ceiling and wall repair	11-M03	\$35,034



<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
Separate fire/smoke system and upgrade HVAC at Grant Sawyer Building-Advance Planning	11-M08a	\$401,388
Culinary, laundry, and dining improvements at Southern Desert Correctional Center (Core Expansion Phase III).....	11-C01	\$4,961,872
Install electronic door controls-Warm Springs Correctional Center	11-M14	\$1,534,431
HVAC replacement-Northern Nevada Correctional Center Regional Medical Facility	11-M27	\$1,341,470
Replace flooring-Northern Nevada Correctional Center Regional Medical Facility	11-M49	\$445,519
HVAC Renovation-Desert Regional Center Building 1300.....	11-M37	\$313,706
Water tower maintenance, paint, controls and pumps-Floyd Edsall Training Center facility	11-M45	\$178,456
NSHE Deferred Maintenance (HECC/SHECC)	11-M39	\$2,377,088
Statewide Fire and Life Safety Program.....	11-S03	\$6,847

Sec. 8. 1. The State Public Works Division of the Department of Administration shall transfer the sum of \$2,683,208 from the amounts authorized pursuant to section 3 of chapter 347, Statutes of Nevada 2007, at page 1641, for the project numbered and described in the Executive Budget for the 2007-2009 biennium or otherwise described as project 07-M48, Surveillance cameras, NNCC and NSP, to projects as authorized in subsection 2.

2. The State Public Works Division shall use the \$2,683,208 transferred pursuant to subsection 1 to support the Division in carrying out the program of capital improvements summarized in this subsection. This amount is allocated to the project numbered



and described in the Executive Budget for the 2011-2013 biennium or otherwise described as project 11-M60, Surveillance cameras and recording devices-Ely State Prison.

Sec. 9. Any remaining balance of the amounts transferred in sections 7 and 8 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2015, and any portion of the allocated money remaining must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 18, 2015.

Sec. 10. Expenditure of the following sums not appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund is hereby authorized for the following projects numbered and described in the Executive Budget for the 2011-2013 biennium or otherwise described as follows:

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
1. Advance planning-DMV building in south Reno	11-E02	\$35,768
2. Lake Mead Fish Hatchery-Advance Planning for pipeline and water treatment infrastructure	11-E03	\$466,429
3. Advance planning-DMV building in Las Vegas	11-E04	\$36,952
4. Energy Efficiency Improvements at Field Maintenance Shop and Central Support Maintenance Shop facilities-Carson City and Las Vegas.....	11-E06	\$345,341
5. Electrical upgrades for simulator power at Stead Training Facility.....	11-E07	\$145,025
6. Advance Planning-Army National Guard Aviation Support Facility at Elko Airport.....	11-E08	\$285,973
7. Remodel Hangar C12 VIP waiting area at Stead Nevada Army National Guard.....	11-E11	\$81,210



<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>	<u>Amount</u>
8. Replace hangar door seals and concrete flatwork- Stead Army Aviation Support Facility.....	11-E12	\$118,953
9. Replace fire protection ponds with underground storage tanks-Stead Army Aviation Support Facility.....	11-M04	\$501,605
10. Replace vehicle exhaust systems-Facility Maintenance Shop and Combined Support Maintenance Shop Buildings-North Las Vegas Armory	11-M05	\$127,006
11. Install emergency generator-Stead Army Aviation Support Facility.....	11-M06	\$710,252
12. HVAC Renovation- Nevada Army National Guard Stead Dining Facility	11-M29	\$102,950
13. Roof, Mechanical Screen and HVAC Replacement- Valley of Fire State Park Visitor Center.....	11-M32	\$121,071
14. Water tower maintenance, paint, controls and pumps-Floyd Edsall Training Center facility.....	11-M45	\$145,673
15. Statewide Environmental Program.....	11-S06	\$200,000
16. Statewide Building Official Projects	11-S09	\$924,112

Sec. 11. The State Public Works Division of the Department of Administration shall carry out the provisions of this act as provided in chapter 341 of NRS. The Division shall ensure that qualified persons are employed to accomplish the authorized work. Every contract pertaining to the work must be approved by the Attorney General.

Sec. 12. All state and local governmental agencies involved in the design and construction of the projects enumerated in this act



shall cooperate with the State Public Works Division of the Department of Administration to expedite the completion of the project.

Sec. 13. The State Board of Finance shall issue general obligation bonds of the State of Nevada in the face amount of not more than \$490,000 in Fiscal Year 2011-2012, as provided in NRS 233C.225, for the program for awarding financial assistance to pay the actual expenses of preserving or protecting historical buildings to be used to develop a network of cultural centers and activities.

Sec. 14. 1. An ad valorem tax of 15.55 cents on each \$100 of assessed valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2011, and ending on June 30, 2012, and an ad valorem tax of 15.55 cents on each \$100 of assessed valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2012, and ending on June 30, 2013. The taxes levied must be collected in the manner provided in chapter 361 of NRS on all taxable property in this State including the net proceeds of minerals and excluding such property as is by law exempt from taxation. Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 361.453 to the contrary, 0.55 cents of the levies imposed pursuant to this subsection must not be included in calculating the limitation set forth in subsection 1 of NRS 361.453 on the total ad valorem tax levied for all public purposes.

2. An ad valorem tax of 1.45 cents on each \$100 of assessed valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2011, and ending on June 30, 2012, and an ad valorem tax of 1.45 cents on each \$100 of assessed valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2012, and ending on June 30, 2013. The taxes levied must be collected in the manner provided in chapter 361 of NRS on all taxable property in this State including the net proceeds of minerals and excluding such property as is by law exempt from taxation. The proceeds of the taxes levied pursuant to this subsection must be used exclusively for the repayment of bonded indebtedness issued pursuant to the provisions of chapter 6, Statutes of Nevada 2001, 17th Special Session. Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 361.453 to the contrary, the levies imposed pursuant to this subsection must not be included in calculating the limitation set forth in subsection 1 of NRS 361.453 on the total ad valorem tax levied for all public purposes.

3. The proceeds of the taxes levied by this section are hereby appropriated for each fiscal year to the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund to discharge the obligations of the State of



Nevada as they are respectively due in that fiscal year. Any balance of the money appropriated by this section remaining at the end of the respective fiscal years does not revert to the State General Fund.

Sec. 15. 1. On or before July 1, 2011, and July 1, 2012, the State Treasurer shall estimate the amount of proceeds of the taxes levied by section 14 of this act. If the sum of that estimate and the balance of ad valorem reserves in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is less than the total obligation of the State of Nevada for payment of the interest on and principal of bonds which will become due in the fiscal year, the State Treasurer shall ask the State Controller to reserve in the State General Fund an amount which is sufficient to pay the remainder of the total obligation. The State Treasurer may revise the estimate and amount reserved.

2. If the money in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is insufficient to pay those obligations as they become due, the State Controller shall cause the money in reserve to be transferred from the State General Fund to the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. The amount reserved is hereby contingently appropriated for that purpose. Any balance of the sums appropriated by this subsection remaining at the end of the respective fiscal years must not be committed for expenditure after June 30 of the respective fiscal years and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 21, 2012, and September 20, 2013, respectively.

3. The State Treasurer shall report to the Legislature or, if the Legislature is not in session, to the Interim Finance Committee:

(a) The amount of any estimate made pursuant to subsection 1 and the amount of money reserved in the State General Fund based upon the estimate;

(b) The amount of money transferred from the State General Fund pursuant to subsection 2; and

(c) The amount of money which reverts to the State General Fund pursuant to subsection 2.

Sec. 16. The State Board of Finance, in its capacity as the State General Obligation Bond Commission and to the extent that money is available, shall pay the expenses related to the issuance of general obligation bonds approved by the 76th Session of the Nevada Legislature from the proceeds of those bonds.

Sec. 17. 1. Expenditure of the following sums not appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund is hereby authorized from the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund in the amount of \$157,663,910 for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2011, and ending on June 30, 2012, and in the



amount of \$167,264,898 for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2012, and ending on June 30, 2013.

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 4 of NRS 353.220, the approval of the Interim Finance Committee is not required for any request for the revision of a work program for any account within the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund for the payment of principal, interest and related costs of issuance for securities approved by the State Legislature pursuant to the provisions of this act.

Sec. 18. With the approval of the Interim Finance Committee, the State Public Works Division of the Department of Administration and the Nevada System of Higher Education may transfer appropriated, allocated and authorized money from one project to another within the same agency or within the Nevada System of Higher Education for those projects listed in sections 1, 7 and 19 of this act.

Sec. 19. The money collected pursuant to the annual tax on slot machines imposed pursuant to NRS 463.385 that is distributed to the Special Capital Construction Fund for Higher Education, except any amount of that money which is needed to pay the principal and interest on bonds, is appropriated to the State Public Works Division of the Department of Administration in the sum of \$5,000,000 for the project numbered and described in the Executive Budget for the 2011-2013 biennium or otherwise described as project 11-M39, NSHE Deferred Maintenance (HECC/SHECC).

Sec. 20. Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by section 19 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2015, by the entity to which the appropriation is made or any entity to which money from the appropriation is granted or otherwise transferred in any manner, and any portion of the appropriated money remaining must not be spent for any purpose after September 18, 2015, by either the entity to which the money was appropriated or the entity to which the money was subsequently granted or transferred, and must be reverted to the fund of origin on or before September 18, 2015.

Sec. 21. Section 5 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, as last amended by section 29 of chapter 440, Statutes of Nevada 2009, at page 2466, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 5. 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and



Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 16, 2005.

2. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for project 01-C4, New State Motor Pool building, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 21, 2007.

3. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for project 01-C16, furnishings and build-out, Redfield campus, phase I, UNR, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2006, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 15, 2006.

4. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 21, 2007:

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>
(a) Finalize southern Nevada veterans' home	01-C8
(b) Special children's clinic addition and remodel	01-C9
(c) Capitol, capitol annex and Blasdel building renovations	01-C10
(d) Furnishings and build-out of library and student center, WNCC	01-C18
(e) Telecommunications building on Cheyenne campus, CCSN	01-C29L
(f) HVAC upgrades at computer facility, Carson City	01-M26
(g) Replace boiler, pumps and piping at computer facility, Carson City	01-M27
(h) Statewide roofing program	01-S1
(i) Statewide ADA program	01-S2
(j) Statewide fire sprinkler program	01-S3



5. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2009, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 18, 2009:

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>
(a) National Guard Rural Armory renovations	01-C12
(b) Planning, design and utility infrastructure for science and engineering complex, UNLV	01-C15
(c) Wright Hall addition and renovation, UNLV	01-C23

6. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for ~~the following projects,~~ **project 01-C24, New campus library, UNR,** must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2011, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 16, 2011. ~~;~~

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>
(a) New campus library, UNR	01-C24
(b) Academic and student services building, NSC	01-C25

7. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for project 01-C25, Academic and student services building, NSC, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2013, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 20, 2013.

Sec. 22. 1. Section 2 of chapter 398, Statutes of Nevada 2005, at page 1547, as last amended by section 31 of chapter 440, Statutes of Nevada 2009, at page 2468, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2. 1. Except as otherwise provided in ~~subsection 2,~~ **this section,** any remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 1 of chapter 398, Statutes of Nevada 2005, at



pages 1543 to 1547, inclusive, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2009, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 18, 2009.

2. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 1 of chapter 398, Statutes of Nevada 2005, at pages 1543 to 1547, inclusive, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2011, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 16, 2011:

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>
(a) Greenspun College of Urban Affairs- building at UNLV.....	05-C16
(b) Design and construction of electrical and industrial technology building at Great Basin College.....	05-C18
(e) (b) New classroom building on West Charleston Campus of CCSN.....	05-C20c
(d) (c) Construction of student services building addition and renovation of Frazier Hall at UNLV	05-C67L
(e) (d) Science and math education center at UNR.....	05-C68L
(f) (e) Sewage treatment upgrades at ESP.....	05-M15
(g) (f) Sewage disposal upgrades at PCC.....	05-M16
(h) (g) Statewide Fire and Life Safety Program	05-S03
(i) (h) Statewide Paving Program.....	05-S05
(j) (i) Statewide Asbestos, Lead, Mold, IAQ Program	05-S06
(k) (j) Statewide Underground Storage Tank Program	05-S07

3. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 1 of chapter 398, Statutes of Nevada 2005, at pages 1543 to 1547, inclusive, for the project 05-C16, Greenspun College of Urban Affairs building at UNLV, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2013, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 20, 2013.



Sec. 23. 1. Section 5 of chapter 398, Statutes of Nevada 2005, at page 1548, as last amended by section 32 of chapter 440, Statutes of Nevada 2009, at page 2469, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 5. 1. Except as otherwise provided in ~~subsection 2~~ **this section**, any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 398, Statutes of Nevada 2005, at pages 1547 and 1548, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2009, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 18, 2009.

2. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 398, Statutes of Nevada 2005, at pages 1547 and 1548, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2011, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 16, 2011:

<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>
(a) Deferred construction of new campus library at UNR	05-C05
(b) Las Vegas readiness center for Nevada National Guard	05-C13
(c) Greenspun College of Urban Affairs building at UNLV	05-C16
(d) (c) Design and construction of electrical and industrial technology Building at Great Basin College	05-C18
(e) (d) New classroom building on West Charleston Campus of CCSN	05-C20c
(f) (e) Construction of student services building addition and renovation of Frazier Hall at UNLV	05-C67L
(g) (f) Science and math education center at UNR	05-C68L

3. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 4 of chapter 398, Statutes of Nevada 2005, at pages 1547 and 1548, for project 05-C13, Las Vegas readiness center for Nevada National Guard, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2013, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption



Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 20, 2013.

Sec. 24. Section 2 of chapter 347, Statutes of Nevada 2007, at page 1641, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2. 1. ~~{Any}~~ ***Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, any*** remaining balance of the appropriation made by section 1 of ~~{this-act}~~ ***chapter 347, Statutes of Nevada 2007, at pages 1636 to 1641, inclusive,*** must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2011, by the entity to which the appropriation is made or any entity to which money from the appropriation is granted or otherwise transferred in any manner, and any portion of the appropriated money remaining must not be spent for any purpose after September 16, 2011, by either the entity to which the money was appropriated or the entity to which the money was subsequently granted or transferred, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 16, 2011.

2. ***Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 1 of chapter 347, Statutes of Nevada 2007, at pages 1636 to 1641, inclusive, for project 07-C09, Furnishings and equipment for Science, Engineering and Technology Building, UNLV, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2013, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or before September 20, 2013.***

Sec. 25. Section 4 of chapter 347, Statutes of Nevada 2007, at page 1644, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 4. 1. ~~{Any}~~ ***Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, any*** remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 3 of ~~{this-act}~~ ***chapter 347, Statutes of Nevada 2007, at pages 1641 to 1644, inclusive,*** must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2011, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 16, 2011.

2. ***Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 3 of chapter 347, Statutes of Nevada 2007, at pages 1641 to 1644, inclusive, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2013, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 20, 2013:***



<u>Description</u>	<u>Project No.</u>
(a) SNWCC 400-bed expansion	07-C03
(b) ISCC 384-bed expansion and 168-bed renovation	07-C05
(c) Construction of housing unit and facility expansion at SDCC	07-C07a
(d) Furnishings, equipment and additional construction for Greenspun College of Urban Affairs Building, UNLV.....	07-C16
(e) Cave Automated Virtual Environment facility at DRI-construction completion.....	07-C17
(f) Replace Campos Office Building and parking area.....	07-C22
(g) Life safety improvements of Bristlecone Building at WNCC	07-C24
(h) Civil Support Team WMD facility in Las Vegas	07-C27
(i) Door control panels and fire door replacements at SNWCC	07-M24
(j) Shower and bathroom renovation at NNCC	07-M40
(k) Surveillance cameras, NNCC and NSP.....	07-M48
(l) Southern Nevada Veterans' Cemetery expansion - planning	07-P05

Sec. 26. This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.

